MORAINE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
9000 West College Parkway
Palos Hills, IL 60465

Governing Board of Moraine Valley Community College, Community College District #524,
Regular Meeting, 6:00 PM, Thursday, October 16, 2025, Board Room D219 9000 West College
Parkway Palos Hills, IL 60465. Virtual access is provided by teleconference online via
www.morainevalley.edu/BOTOct16 or by phone 1-945-468-5504 with Phone Conference ID

444 003 864+#.

—_—

10.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL
MINUTES
1) Unapproved Minutes - Committee of the Whole Meeting, September 3, 2025
2) Unapproved Minutes - Regular Meeting, September 18, 2025
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
BOARD REPORTS AND/OR REQUESTS
REPORTS OF ADMINISTRATION
1) President's Report
* Enrollment Report
* Facilities Master Plan Update
COMMUNICATIONS
1) Palos Hills Beautification Award
FINANCIAL STATEMENT
1) Treasurer's Report
2) Financial Records Summary
3) Investments
WARRANTS
CONSENT AGENDA (Agenda Items 9 - 12) (*items included for action)
1) * Account Expenditure Summaries (including Travel Expense Reimbursements)
2) * Education Fund
3) * Operation & Maintenance Fund
4) * Operation & Maintenance Restricted Fund
5) * Bond & Interest Fund
6) * Auxiliary Fund
7) * Restricted Purpose Fund
8) * Working Cash Fund
9) * Trust and Agency Fund
10) * Audit Fund
11) * Liability, Protection and Settlement Fund
REPORT OF PERSONNEL
1) * Full-Time
2) * Part-Time/Supplemental/Other
3) Salary Revisions
4) * Leave of Absence (LOA)
5) * Resignations/Terminations
a. * Retirements — Professional Staff



http://www.morainevalley.edu/BOTOct16

Agenda for the Regular Meeting of Thursday, October 16, 2025 Page 2

11.
12.

13.
14.
15.

16.

b. * Retirements — Support Staff

6) * Reclassifications (Promotions, Transfers, Corrections, etc.)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

1) * Affiliation Agreement with Chicago Ridge School District 127.5 (Nursing)

2) * Affiliation Agreement with University of Chicago Medical Center (Nursing)

3) * Dean of Nursing Office Furniture Purchase

4) * SWEC Juno Nursing Simulated Manikin Purchase

5) * Request for Extension of 65th Street Tax Increment Finance District from Village of
Bedford Park

6) * Request for Approval of Additional Funding for Capital Development Board (CDB)
Project: Building H Locker Rooms and Pool Area Renovation

MISCELLANEOUS

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

CLOSED SESSION - Motion to adjourn to closed session to discuss pending litigation pursuant

to Section 2(c)(11) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act.

ADJOURNMENT




Agenda Item 3.0
October 16, 2025

MINUTES
3.1 Approved Minutes - Special Meeting/Board Retreat - August 4, 2025 Enclosed
3.2 Approved Minutes - Public Hearing on the Budget - August 21, 2025 Enclosed

3.3  Approved Minutes - Regular Meeting - August 21, 2025 Enclosed



APPROVED

MORAINE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
9000 West College Parkway
Palos Hills, IL 60465

The Governing Board of Moraine Valley Community College, District No. 524, Special
Meeting/Board Retreat, was held on Monday, August 4, 2025, in Building D, Board Room
D219, 9000 West College Parkway, Palos Hills, Illinois, 60465.

I.

II.

I11.

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Beth McElroy Kirkwood asked meeting attendees to rise and join her in
reciting The Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting was called to order by Chair
Beth McElroy Kirkwood at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Beth McElroy Kirkwood, Chair; Walter Fronczek, Patricia Joan
Murphy; Jaclyn O’Day (Virtually present at 5:01 p.m.); Diane
Shaar; Tracy M. Sullivan; Eileen Kerlin Walsh

Absent: Garrett Weigel, Student Trustee

Chair McElroy Kirkwood requested anyone calling in to state their name when
speaking or making a motion for the record. She also asked those not speaking
to keep their devices on mute.

GENERAL DISCUSSION OF MATTERS RELATING TO THE
SHORT- AND LONG-TERM FUTURE OF THE COLLEGE

Dr. Pamela J. Haney introduced Dominick Demonica, Principal Architect of
Demonica Kemper Architects to present the Facilities Master Plan Update.

e Facilities Master Plan Presentation: Dr. Haney invited Dominick
Demonica of Demonica Kemper Architects to provide an update on the
Facilities Master Plan. Mr. Demonica began his presentation
explaining that the Facilities Master Plan is a long-term strategic
document developed after receiving input from a wide range of
stakeholders. He said the most critical aspect of the Facilities Master
Plan is to provide a vision for the future of the college that aligns with
the college's strategic plan. Mr. Demonica presented a space utilization
analysis that evaluated classroom usage based on weekly room hours,



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 2

occupancy rates, and square footage per student station. Mr. Demonica
presented photos of the existing work areas for programs, along with
the current square footage needed, based on requests from focus group
meetings. Based on the space analysis, it was determined that
additional space totaling approximately 53,000 net square feet is
needed for Automotive Technology, Welding, HVAC/Refrigeration,
Fire Science/EMS, and Automation and Engineering Technology. To
support these programs, Mr. Demonica presented a proposal for the
development of a new Career and Technical Education (CTE) facility
totaling approximately 94,000 square feet on the property east of 88th
Avenue and potential renovations of Building T. Mr. Demonica
explained the conceptual campus development plan and provided maps
and visuals which displayed the new CTE building, a mock town, fire
tower and hazardous material training, and the creation of competition
and recreational soccer fields. He also provided photos and plans of
similar buildings constructed at other community colleges in Illinois.

Vice Chair Murphy asked if there had been any feedback regarding the
potential burn tower in the conceptual plan. Mr. Demonica said there
has not been any feedback yet and noted the burn tower could
potentially be relocated if necessary. Vice Chair Murphy asked how
the cost of the conceptual CTE building compares to recent
construction projects at other community colleges. Mr. Demonica
stated that the Technical Education Center at Waubonsee Community
College is likely the closest comparison. Trustee Sullivan inquired
about potential funding sources for the project and asked if other
campuses had received state funding for their buildings. Mr. Demonica
explained that some colleges received state funding, while others had
funded new buildings internally. Trustee O'Day noted that McHenry
County College created a dedicated space for the study of Artificial
Intelligence. Trustee O'Day then asked whether there had been any
recent discussions about potential funding with the Capital
Development Board (CDB). Dr. Haney stated the CDB had awarded
the college $43 million for renovations in Buildings A, B, and L, and
discussions are ongoing regarding how that funding will be
implemented. She emphasized that the funds already have been
allocated and cautioned that changing the project could result in a lower
ranking on the CDB list. Trustee Sullivan asked if the college could
redefine the project while still maintaining the current position on the
list. Dr. Haney explained that any redefinition would likely result in the
college losing its current ranking. Dr. Dammon, vice president of



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 3

Administrative Services, noted that the CDB has not published a list in
the past four years. He said that the college has likely moved up in
priority over time, but final decisions on project funding rest with the
state. Dr. Dammon stated that simply resubmitting the proposal as an
entirely new project would not align with the CDB’s process. Trustee
O'Day shared that she had served in a leadership role with the CDB for
several years. She offered to have a more in-depth discussion about the
process. Trustee Sullivan asked if the potential new building would
require review by utility providers. Mr. Demonica said utility
coordination would be required and noted that it is part of the
conceptual plan and timeline. Trustee O'Day asked whether workforce
trends and in-demand jobs had been taken into account in the planning
process. Dr. Nagle confirmed that, according to the space utilization
study, the programs being considered are projected to grow over the
next decade at rates that are average or above average. Trustee O'Day
then asked whether any of these programs might be affected by
advancements in Al-related technologies. Dr. Nagle responded that the
programs in question are primarily hands-on and are less susceptible to
disruption from Al. He added that while Al may influence instructional
methods, the nature of these jobs makes them less likely to be replaced
by automation. Trustee Fronczek stated that workforce needs are
constantly evolving and noted that not every program on the list may
ultimately be implemented. Trustee Shaar inquired about the planned
land survey for the new building within the conceptual timeline. Mr.
Demonica responded that the study would need to be completed soon,
but the exact timeline would depend on the direction chosen by the
Board.

Trustee Sullivan asked what is needed from the Board to move the
project forward. Dr. Haney stated that the goal is to bring a conceptual
proposal back to a regular meeting of the Board for approval. She noted
that an additional meeting may be necessary to discuss the next steps
and potential funding sources. Mr. Demonica stated that a more
detailed document would be prepared and emphasized that the current
plan is centered on the construction of a new CTE building. Trustee
Sullivan asked what the estimated cost would be for the new building.
Mr. Demonica stated it was approximately $98 million. Trustee
Sullivan asked what the plan would be if the Board chose not to move
forward with the new building. He said if the Board decides not to
move forward with the new building, the overall plan will need to be
revised, and the steering committee would need to reconvene to



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 4

reassess the direction. The Board thanked Mr. Demonica for his
presentation.

The Board thanked Mr. Demonica for his presentation. The Board took a brief
break at 6:28 p.m. and returned at 6:40 p.m. Dr. Haney invited Dr. Mary
Spilde, consultant of the Association of Community College Trustees, to lead
the Board policy discussion.

Board Policy Discussion Facilitated by Dr. Mary Spilde, Consultant of
the Association of Community College Trustees (ACCT), with
Representation by Jim Reed, executive director of the Illinois
Community College Trustee Association (ICCTA): Dr. Spilde said she
is pleased to represent ACCT during the Board policy discussion and
noted she understood the Board has invested significant time in the
project to review the Board Policy Manual. She said the goal of the
discussion was not to approve the policies, but to bring them as close
to approval-ready as possible. Dr. Spilde defined governance as the
process by which an elected or appointed body articulates its priorities
and expectations through clear directives and policies. She said the
ultimate role of the Board is the critical task of ensuring that an
institution fulfills its mission of providing accessible, high-quality
education to its communities. Dr. Spilde discussed the Board's role in
adopting policies and defined the key responsibilities. She stated that
the Board oversees the implementation of policies and ensures that the
college president and staff adhere to them. She noted that the Board
defines the strategic direction and mission of the college, ensuring it
aligns with the community's needs. She stated the Board delegates
responsibilities for developing administrative procedures and
executing those polices to the college president and administrative
staff. She noted that the Board should regularly review and evaluate the
effectiveness of existing policies. Dr. Spilde stated that policy making
is a joint effort between the Board and the college president. She said
it is essential to recognize the difference between Board policies and
the operations of the college, noting that the Board focuses on setting
strategic direction, while the administration and staff handle the
implementation and management of the college's daily operations.

o Board Policy 2120: Policy and Bylaw Development: During
the meeting, Dr. Spilde shared a revised version of Board Policy
2120: Policy and Bylaw Development. Dr. Haney stated that
there had been recent recommendations from some Trustees to



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 5

modify the policy, and the administration had attempted to
revise it. She noted that Kelly Grab, compliance officer, would
provide a brief overview of the revised policy.

Ms. Grab said the policy was originally adopted at the Board
meeting on November 19, 2024. The policy addresses the
process through which policies are developed. She stated that
since the project's commencement, there has been feedback
regarding the need to ensure the policy is precise before
proceeding with the adoption or amendment of other policies.
Language regarding first and second readings has been added
under policy development. The revised policy states that
policies will be placed on the agenda of a regular or special
meeting for discussion and shall not be adopted or amended
until the subsequent meeting. She said there are certain
situations in which the administration may recommend policy
updates in an expedited timeline, such as in response to
compliance with state/federal law or in response to an
emergency. In those situations, the Board may choose to waive
a second reading and adopt a policy after only one reading if a
majority of the Board agrees to it.

Trustee Sullivan asked if all the policies would come to the
Board at a public meeting. Ms. Grab confirmed that the policies
would come to the Board at a public meeting. Trustee Sullivan
asked if there is an expedited method to approve a policy outside
of a regular or special meeting in case of an emergency. Ms.
Grab said policy changes must be approved at a publicly held
meeting, but the Board could call an emergency meeting to
approve a policy. Trustee O'Day said she had just received the
policy, virtually a few moments prior, and had not had enough
time to review it. Chair McElroy Kirkwood confirmed that the
Trustees attending the meeting in person also received the
revised policy for the first time during the meeting. Trustee
O'Day said she is not ready to say if she is prepared to support
the revised policy tonight. Chair McElroy Kirkwood said the
Board would not be taking a vote during the retreat. Vice Chair
Murphy asked if it is allowable to conduct straw polls to gauge
the opinion of Trustees on policies. Dr. Spilde said the first
reading is typically the time at which Board members provide
their feedback regarding a policy. However, Dr. Spilde said the



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 6

Board is not restricted from participating in straw polls if that is
something the Board wants to do; straw polls are not
specifically mentioned in the policy. Trustee Sullivan asked if
edits to policies should be brought to the public meeting for
discussion or if they should be sent to the Board Chair ahead of
time. Chair McElroy Kirkwood said she would prefer to see the
edits ahead of time. Dr. Spilde said it is appropriate to send edits
to the Board Chair and president ahead of time so there are no
surprises during the regular meetings. Dr. Spilde asked if the
Board is receptive to the revisions in the revised policy. Trustee
Fronczek said he is glad to see that there are mechanisms in
place to allow the Board to expedite policy updates resulting
from legal changes. Trustee O'Day asked if the policy should
mention the Open Meetings Act and the duties of the Board in
this policy. Dr. Spilde said that the Board will be reviewing a
policy later that codifies the Board's responsibilities. Attorney
Steigauf stated that there is another policy that references the
Open Meetings Act. Dr. Spilde said Boards do not have to have
every piece of the statute in their policies and typically state that
all policies comply with federal and state law. She said it is
essential to ensure that policies are accessible and
understandable.

Trustee Sullivan asked Dr. Spilde her opinion on the
establishment of a subcommittee of the Board focusing on
policies. She said she is aware of other community colleges that
have policy subcommittees. She asked if that approach might
help streamline the process and avoid lengthy public readings
during Board meetings. Dr. Spilde said it really depends on the
Board's inclination. She said if the Board is open to delegating
policy work to a subcommittee and generally supports their
recommendations, committees can function effectively.
However, if the Board prefers to work collectively on policies
as a whole, it might be better to meet as a committee of the
whole, so all Trustees have an opportunity to participate in
policy review. Dr. Spilde also stated that if the subcommittee
undertakes the work of revising policies based on the feedback
of certain Trustees, and they are reworked again at a Board
meeting, it could lead to extra work for the Board and college
employees. She said if other Trustees on the Board want to
provide feedback on the policies, then the subcommittee may



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 7

quickly have a quorum and become a committee of the whole
instead of a policy subcommittee.

Trustee Sullivan asked what other Trustees thought of the
potential for a policy subcommittee. Vice Chair Murphy asked
who would be writing the policies. Dr. Spilde stated that
typically, college staff and legal counsel draft policies for
review and approval by the Board. She said Trustees can
provide substantial feedback during their reviews, but she has
not seen instances where Board members write or rewrite
policies. Dr. Spilde stressed that it is essential for the Board to
take advantage of staff who are content experts and to work with
them to ensure policies meet their needs. Trustee Fronczek said
it is an advantage to have college employees who are
knowledgeable about content.

Trustee O'Day asked if Attorney Steigauf had reviewed all of
the policies that are up for review. Attorney Steigauf said she
does not know if she has reviewed all of the policies that were
submitted with redlines.

Trustee Sullivan asked if we should have committee of the
whole meetings to complete the review of the Board Policy
Manual. Chair McElroy Kirkwood said we initially decided to
have committee of the whole meetings so all Trustees could
provide feedback during the review of the Board Policy Manual.
Chair McElroy Kirkwood and Trustee Sullivan inquired
whether the policy should specifically state that the college will
review policies through committee of the whole meetings. Dr.
Spilde stated that the revisions to the policy specify that the
college will discuss policy updates during a regular or special
meeting. She said the committee of the whole is a special
meeting of the Board, so it may not need to be listed specifically.
Dr. Spilde recommended that the college continue to utilize
committee of the whole meetings as it works through the review
of the Board Policy Manual. She said that way, all Trustees will
be engaged and involved in the process. She said once the
manual is up to date, the college may decide to utilize a policy
subcommittee. Trustee Sullivan inquired whether a committee
of the whole could serve as a first reading and then be presented
to the Board for approval at a regular Board meeting. Dr. Spilde

10



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 8

confirmed that the first reading can be done at a committee of
the whole meeting. Attorney Steigauf said we could add
language to the policy to specifically include the committee of
the whole as an opportunity for a first read of policies.

Dr. Spilde led a discussion on the annotated changes to Board policies
submitted by Trustees April 2025 after the conclusion of the committee
of the whole meeting on March 18, 2025. Trustee O’Day said it would
be helpful to get the policies in writing and said she was under the
impression that the Board would not be going through policies line by
line during the retreat. Trustee Sullivan also said she was not informed
that the Board would be going through the policies line by line during
the retreat. She said she was under the understanding that the Board
would be discussing best practices in developing policies. Trustee
Sullivan added that many of the policies are outdated, and she
suggested that if they are not operational policies, they should be
identified as such. Dr. Spilde said the Board will not go through the
policies line by line. She said she is providing the Board with an
opportunity to discuss the changes submitted to the policies so that
people feel heard and that their concerns are addressed. Trustee
Sullivan said she would have preferred to know that they would be
discussing the policy revisions so she could have prepared for the
meeting.

o Board Policy 1000: Mission, Vision, and Core Values: Dr.
Spilde led a discussion on Board Policy 1000: Mission, Vision,
and Core Values. She stated that any changes to these elements
should be integrated into the strategic planning process, which
should involve a wide range of participants, including faculty,
staff, students, and community members, all of whom have a
stake in the institution's mission, vision, and values. She
recommended not making changes to the policy at this time and
instead allowing the revisions to go through the regular strategic
planning process. Trustee O'Day said the Board was not
included in the process to develop the strategic plan. She said
she would be open to ideas and recommendations on how the
Board can be more involved in the process. Dr. Spilde said the
mission, vision, and core values are not necessarily changed
during the strategic planning process. Dr. Haney said the college
reviewed its mission, vision, and core values during the strategic
planning process but did not make any changes. Dr. Spilde

11



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 9

stated that the Board does have a role in the strategic planning
process, but that it may be better placed in a different policy.
Trustee Sullivan said she agreed that the Board's involvement
with the strategic plan should be stated somewhere in the policy
manual. She said she agreed with Trustee O'Day that the Board
was not provided an opportunity to be engaged and involved in
the strategic planning process. Kelly Grab suggested that the
information regarding the Board's involvement in the strategic
plan can be included in the policy related to the duties of the
Board.

o Board Policy 1100: Freedom of Speech, Expression and
Assembly: Time, Place and Manner: Dr. Spilde led a discussion
on Board Policy 1100: Freedom of Speech, Expression and
Assembly: Time, Place and Manner. She noted this policy was
lifted from another section and said there is a revision that
would hold Board members to the same standards as students,
faculty, and staff. She asked if the Board had feedback on
whether or not Board members should be included in the policy.
Dr. Spilde said it is important for Trustees to understand that it
is clear Trustees are not speaking for the Board and are speaking
as individuals, unless authorized by the Board. Trustee O’Day
said she submitted the request to include Trustees in this policy
and said she does not see any reason why Board members
should not be included.

o Board Policy 1110: Guest Speakers: Dr. Spilde led a discussion
on Board Policy 1110: Guest Speakers. Dr. Spilde mentioned
that many colleges are currently reviewing policies related to
guest speakers and noted the importance of having a clear policy
in place. Trustee Sullivan asked if the college currently has an
operational guideline in effect pertaining to guest speakers. Dr.
Ryen Nagle, vice president of Academic Affairs, said there are
some operational procedures related to guest speakers. Trustee
Sullivan said it is essential to ensure the Board policy aligns
with the operational guidelines. Trustee Fronczek inquired
whether some of the information from the policy is included in
the Student Code of Conduct. Dr. Normah Salleh-Barone, vice
president of Student Development, said this information is not
in the Student Code of Conduct. She said we want to ensure that
students can invite any speakers they wish, as this is their rights,

12



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 10

while also clarifying that the college does not necessarily
endorse the views of those speakers. Dr. Haney said the Library
has an operational procedure regarding guest speakers that
reflects the policy but goes into even greater detail.

o Board Policy 1200: Policy Prohibiting Sex-based Misconduct:
Dr. Spilde led a discussion on Board Policy 1200: Policy
Prohibiting Sex-based Misconduct. She stated that the bulk of
this policy is governed by law and rules established by the
Department of Education. Trustee O’Day asked for clarification
on the language related to contractors, visitors, and other third
parties that are found to engage in prohibited misconduct. She
said she felt the information was vague and did not state where
and when the misconduct took place, and what the response
would be from the college. She asked if there was more
information spelled out in an operational procedure. Ms. Grab
said the procedures would be specific to the situation and the
individual’s relationship to the college. Trustee Sullivan said
she believes it is vital that contractors are made aware of campus
rules to avoid any unnecessary repercussions. She said it is more
important to address fraudulent and illegal actions, but it is
crucial to include clear definitions of prohibited misconduct and
ensure they are communicated and enforced. Dr. Spilde
clarified that this particular policy is focused on prohibiting sex-
based misconduct on campus.

o Board Policy 2000: Authority: Dr. Spilde led a discussion on
Board Policy 2000: Authority. She stated that a Trustee
submitted a revision to remove the second paragraph of this
policy, which states that a decision by the majority of the Board
is binding on the whole. Trustee O'Day asked if Attorney
Steigauf had reviewed this policy to see if it aligns with the
INlinois compiled statutes. Trustee O'Day said she was unable to
find legal citations relative to the policy. Attorney Steigauf said
she did not look at the Illinois compiled statutes for this
particular policy, but it may be a policy that the Board approves
and agrees to abide by. Dr. Spilde said there may not be a
specific legal citation that relates to this policy, but it is a typical
best practice that once a position is taken, the Board will speak
as one voice and not undermine the decision made by their
colleagues. She said that does not mean a Trustee's opinion can

13



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 11

be silenced and stressed the importance of Trustees discussing
their points of view with their fellow Trustees before a decision
is made. Attorney Steigauf said she would conduct research to
see if there is a compiled statute that addresses Board
governance. Trustee O'Day said she appreciated Attorney
Steigauf's investigation and the research. Trustee O'Day said
she has additional comments regarding this policy, but would
like to wait until Attorney Steigauf can conduct her review.

o Board Policy 2010: Duties of the Board: Dr. Spilde led a
discussion on Board Policy 2010: Duties of the Board. Trustee
O’Day said she submitted revisions for this policy and noted
that she wanted to ensure the policy more specifically outlines
the duties of the Board as presented in state statute instead of
stating the Board’s duties are defined by law. Trustee Sullivan
said she agrees that the specific duties Trustee O’Day
recommended inserting are important and should be
incorporated in the policy. Trustee Fronczek said he believes it
may be beneficial for the policy to remain as presented by the
administration. He said not all of the specific examples
necessarily need to be displayed in the policy. Dr. Spilde said
the recommended edits list specific duties that may be included
in the statute, but are better delegated as duties of college staff,
such as reporting student enrollment data. Jim Reed stressed
that Board policies are not required to align perfectly with the
state statutes. He said you do not have to list all the duties from
the statute in the policy because the policy provides a general
sense of what is required from Board members while
referencing the statute. Attorney Steigauf said the legal team
can review the policy and provide additional recommendations.
Trustee Sullivan said she did not see any information in this
section regarding financial responsibility and noted that she did
not see a policy regarding appointing a college treasurer. Dr.
Haney said the policy regarding the appointment of the college
treasurer was moved to the Finance section of the Board Policy
Manual.

o Board Policy 2020: College Presidential Evaluation: Dr. Spilde
led a discussion on Board Policy 2020: College Presidential
Evaluation. Trustee O'Day said she made several
recommendations to this section based on the Illinois compiled

14



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 12

statutes. Trustee Sullivan stated she supported the revisions
submitted by Trustee O'Day. She noted that the revisions
included a change in the title of the policy from "College
Presidential Evaluation" to "Executive Accountability" and said
the Community College Act mandates the title. Trustee Sullivan
said the revised version states that the annual performance goals
for the president must be clearly defined and presented publicly
during a Board meeting. Furthermore, these annual
performance evaluations must be taken into account when the
Board considers a bonus, raise, or severance agreement with the
college president. Trustee O'Day said the revisions she
submitted were pulled directly from the statute. Dr. Spilde noted
that 90% of the evaluation should be based on the annual goals
provided by the Board. Dr. Spilde also emphasized the
importance of openly discussing the goals during a public
meeting, as it holds Board members accountable for the
established goals and allows the Board and administration to
communicate the collective priorities of the institution clearly.

o Board Policy 2100: Trustee Code of Ethics: Dr. Spilde led a
discussion on Board Policy 2100: Trustee Code of Ethics. Dr.
Spilde noted that there was a request to remove this policy. She
said she strongly recommends against removing the policy and
said she believes that a code of ethics is more important now
than ever. Dr. Spilde said that without a code of ethics, there is
a lack of standard behavior, which can undermine public trust.
She stressed the importance of a code of ethics, noting that it
reinforces transparency and sets clear expectations for ethical
governance. She said it also helps protect the college from legal
and reputational risks. Dr. Spilde said a code of ethics also is a
beneficial tool for onboarding new Board members. Trustee
Sullivan noted that the code of ethics is not specifically required
by law, but that she does not have an issue with the way it is
written. Trustee Shaar said she believes the code of ethics
provides clarity and accountability.

o Board Policy 2200: Board Membership: Dr. Spilde led a
discussion on Board Policy 2200: Board Membership. She
noted that there was a question on this policy regarding the
student Trustee providing an advisory vote. She said that
although the student member does not have voting rights in

15



Minutes of the Special Meeting/Board Retreat of August 4, 2025 Page 13

IVv.

decisions, the advisory role is valuable for sharing student
perspectives with the Board. She said she believes retaining the
advisory role sends a strong message to students that the Board
cares about their input.

The Board discussed when they will meet again to discuss the
remaining policies and determined that a future committee of the whole
meeting would be scheduled. Trustee O'Day asked that the policy on
policies and the governance policy be brought back to the next
committee of the whole meeting. Secretary Kerlin Walsh asked Dr.
Spilde if there was something the Board could do differently to more
efficiently proceed on the policy project. Dr. Spilde said it is essential
that all voices are heard, but at a certain point, the Board needs to decide
and vote on some version of the policies. She said it may not achieve
complete consensus, and she believed the Board has already spent
adequate time on these discussions. Secretary Kerlin Walsh asked how
Dr. Spilde sees the policy review process happening at other
community colleges. Dr. Spilde said the process she typically sees at
other community colleges is that the Board provides input to staff and
allows the staff to integrate that feedback. She said that in her
experience, it is very rare for Trustees to go through policies and mark
them up with revisions. She said it is entirely up to the Board to
determine how they want to handle policy updates, but generally, the
staff handles writing the policies. Dr. Spilde said that, although there
are conflicting views, at some point, the Board may need to trust that
the staff has listened, conducted their research, sought legal counsel,
and come back with what they believe is in the institution's best interest.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:32 PM.

16



APPROVED

MORAINE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
9000 West College Parkway
Palos Hills, IL 60465

The Governing Board of Moraine Valley Community College, District No. 524, Public
Hearing on the Budget, was held on Thursday, August 21, 2025, in Building D, Board Room
D219, 9000 West College Parkway, Palos Hills, Illinois, 60465. Public notice was given
pursuant to the Open Meetings Act Section 42.02.

I.

II.

I11.

Iv.

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chair Beth McElroy Kirkwood at 6:00 PM.

ROLL CALL

Present: Beth McElroy Kirkwood, Chair; Walter Fronczek, Patricia Joan
Murphy; Jaclyn O’Day; Diane Shaar; Tracy M. Sullivan; Garrett
Weigel, Student Trustee

Absent: Eileen Kerlin Walsh
Chair McElroy Kirkwood requested anyone calling in to state their name when

speaking or making a motion for the record. She also asked those who were not
speaking to keep their devices on mute.

PUBLIC HEARING

Michael Cipolla, vice president of Financial and Business Services/college
treasurer, provided remarks on the fiscal year 2026 budget. He noted the
budget proposal was officially made at the Board meeting held on June 17,
2025, and that the budget was published in the newspaper on July 18, 2025.
The budget has been available for public inspection since July 21, 2025. Mr.
Cipolla indicated that the budget is on the agenda for approval at the regular
meeting immediately following the public hearing on the budget on
Thursday, August 21, 2025.

Chair McElroy Kirkwood opened the floor for any public comments on the

budget, which has been on public display for 30 days. There was no audience
participation regarding the budget.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 6:02 PM.

17



APPROVED

MORAINE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
9000 West College Parkway
Palos Hills, IL 60465

The Governing Board of Moraine Valley Community College, District No. 524, Regular
Meeting Immediately Following the Public Hearing on the Budget, was held on Thursday,
August 21,2025, in Building D, Board Room D219, 9000 West College Parkway, Palos Hills,
[llinois, 60465.

I.

II.

I1I.

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Beth McElroy Kirkwood asked meeting attendees to rise and join her in
reciting The Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting was called to order by Chair
Beth McElroy Kirkwood at 6:03 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Beth McElroy Kirkwood, Chair; Walter Fronczek, Patricia Joan
Murphy; Jaclyn O’Day; Diane Shaar; Tracy M. Sullivan; Garrett
Weigel, Student Trustee

Absent: Eileen Kerlin Walsh

Chair McElroy Kirkwood requested anyone calling in to state their name when
speaking or making a motion for the record. She also asked those not speaking
to keep their devices on mute.

Secretary Eileen Kerlin Walsh was absent during the meeting. Trustee Tracy
M. Sullivan served as Secretary Pro Tempore.

MINUTES

Trustee Sullivan noted an error in the unapproved minutes of the regular
meeting on June 17, 2025. The minutes referred to Chair McElroy Kirkwood
identifying agenda items; however, Chair McElroy Kirkwood was absent from
the meeting. Trustee Sullivan suggested amending the minutes to list Vice
Chair Murphy as identifying the agenda items.

It was moved by Trustee Sullivan and seconded by Trustee Fronczek to

approve the unapproved minutes of the regular meeting on June 17, 2025, as
amended.

18



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 2

IV.

ROLL CALL VOTE taken on the unapproved minutes of the regular meeting
on June 17, 2025, as amended:

Yes: Fronczek, Murphy, Shaar, Sullivan
Abstain: McElroy Kirkwood, O’Day
Absent: Kerlin Walsh

Student

Advisory:  Abstain
Motion carried.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None.

BOARD REPORTS AND/OR REQUESTS

5.1 ICCTA Executive Committee Planning Retreat Report - P. Murphy

Vice Chair Murphy reported on the ICCTA Executive Committee Planning
Retreat Report. The retreat was held from August 8-9, 2025, at the Crowne
Plaza Chicago West Loop. Vice Chair Murphy said the retreat provided an
opportunity to discuss goals for the upcoming year and review the 2024-2027
ICCTA Strategic Plan. Vice Chair Murphy said the group recapped the 2025
legislative session and highlighted bills impacting community colleges at both
the state and federal levels while preparing for Lobby Day 2026. The dates of
ICCTA meetings and important events were also discussed. Vice Chair
Murphy said the retreat also included discussions on higher education funding
proposals and emphasized the importance of Business Enterprise Program
(BEP) education and awareness. She stated that, as usual, the retreat focused
on the need for ongoing education and advocacy to policymakers and other
agencies to convey the needs of community colleges collectively. She
emphasized the importance of lawmakers hearing directly from students and
highlighted the impact of students sharing their personal stories. Vice Chair
Murphy said she is going to encourage more collaboration with the student
advocacy committee for increased student participation at ICCTA events. Chair
McElroy Kirkwood thanked Vice Chair Murphy for her report.

5.2 ACCT Governance Leadership Institute Report - D. Shaar

19



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 3

VI.

Trustee Shaar reported on the ACCT Governance Leadership Institute held
from August 6-8, 2025, in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. She said the institute was
held at Allegheny Community College. Trustee Shaar said it was interesting to
learn the different ways community college Boards operate in other states. She
noted that some states have Boards consisting of 10-15 Trustees, and some
Trustees are appointed instead of elected. Trustee Shaar emphasized the
importance of efficient resource management, noting that funds cannot be spent
twice and that the college operates with just one employee, the president. Chair
McElroy Kirkwood, Vice Chair Murphy, and Trustee Sullivan thanked Trustee
Shaar for her report.

5.3 Student Trustee Report — G. Weigel

Student Trustee Weigel provided his Student Trustee report. Over the summer,
Student Trustee Weigel interned in Berlin, Germany, where he explored
various cultural sites, including the Berlin TV Tower, the East Side Gallery,
the Holocaust Memorial, and the Victory Column. He interned at Impact Hub
Berlin, a startup hub, where he focused on market research and connecting
companies with rental opportunities. Student Trustee Weigel shared photos and
a video of his experiences. He noted that he also had the chance to meet with
the student advisory committee for ICCTA and interact with other Student
Trustees. Trustee O’Day asked how he learned about the internship
opportunity. He said he discovered the internship opportunity through an
organization that connects students with companies and was pleased to have
been chosen to participate.

REPORTS OF ADMINISTRATION

6.1 Life Saving Award - Officer Peter Panagiotaros

Dr. Haney invited Chief Patrick Treacy to present the life-saving award to
Officer Peter Panagiotaros. Chief Treacy praised Officer Panagiotoros for his
quick response in a critical situation where a community member was having
a medical episode. Officer Panagiotaros swiftly diagnosed the issue, resulting
in timely transportation and effective treatment for the individual. Following
the incident, the community member sent a heartfelt letter thanking Officer
Panagiotaros, emphasizing that his prompt action significantly improved his
outcome. The community member was in attendance during the recognition.
Chief Treacy presented Officer Panagiotaros with the Life Saving Award,
recognizing his effort.

20



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 4

6.2 President’s Report

College Highlights: Dr. Haney began her report by emphasizing the
importance of the college's mission statement, encouraging everyone to
reflect on its significance in serving students. She expressed pride in the
collective commitment to prioritizing students, noting that this sentiment
was echoed during the recent college in-service. She stated that the college's
mission is the guiding principle that college employees live by every day.
Dr. Haney welcomed everyone back for the 2025-26 academic year and
extended her gratitude to the students, Trustees, faculty, staff, and
administration for their hard work and dedication. Dr. Haney stated that the
theme of the 2025-26 academic year is "One Team, One Heart, One
College," which emerged from discussions with colleagues who felt it
accurately reflects the college's spirit.

Dr. Haney reported a 3.12% increase in headcount and a 3.7% rise in credit
hours for the fall 2025 semester. She highlighted the recent findings from
the National Community College Benchmark Project, which included an
all-time high three-year graduation rate of 42%, a retention rate of 76%, and
a course retention rate of 92%. Dr. Haney noted the importance of
teamwork in advancing the college's mission and mentioned the
collaboration within the Counseling and Career Development Center in
supporting student mental health. She also celebrated the growth of student
organizations to 29 clubs and recognized the Library for its work, which
was featured in an international newsletter. Dr. Haney thanked the IT staff
for their hard work during a Microsoft-related incident. She also thanked
Campus Operations and the Police Department for managing summer
power outages. Dr. Haney reported the progress made by the President's
Advisory Council, emphasizing the focus on communication, college
growth, and campus culture. She discussed the ongoing development of the
Facilities Master Plan and the launch of a new college website in spring
2026.

Dr. Haney reiterated the theme "One Team, One Heart, One College,"
stressing that it represents a call to action. She encouraged everyone to
continue fostering a supportive community that empowers every student's
success and recognizes their shared victories and challenges. Chair
McElroy Kirkwood and Trustee Fronczek thanked Dr. Haney for her
leadership and dedication.

21



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 5

VIL

VIII.

e The Year-in-Review Video: The year-in-review video was shown,
outlining the college’s accomplishments during the past academic year.

COMMUNICATIONS

7.1 Insight Into Academia 2025 Excellence in Mental Health and Well-Being
Award

Chair McElroy Kirkwood acknowledged an announcement stating Moraine
Valley Community College’s Counseling and Career Development Center
received the 2025 Excellence in Mental Health and Well-Being Award from
Insight Into Academia magazine. Dr. Haney expressed gratitude to the
Counseling and Career Development Center for its commitment to mental
wellness and programming including mental health counseling, educational
programs, and community connections with other services.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR JUNE 2025:

8.1(a) Treasurer's Report

Treasurer's Report showing an ending balance of $155,202,198.99 will be filed
for audit. (DOCUMENT A - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

8.1(b) Budget Report

(DOCUMENT B - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

8.1(c) Investments

(DOCUMENT C — SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)
FOR JULY 2025:

8.2(a) Treasurer's Report

Treasurer's Report showing an ending balance of $150,533,677.16 will be filed
for audit. (DOCUMENT D - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

8.2(b) Budget Report

22



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025

Page 6

(DOCUMENT E - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

8.2(c) Investments

(DOCUMENT F — SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

CONSENT AGENDA (IX — XII):

IX.

It was moved by Vice Chair Murphy and seconded by Trustee Sullivan to
approve the following consent agenda items:

WARRANTS

FOR JUNE 2025:

The warrant summaries are presented to the Board.

9.1
92
93
94
9.5
9.6
9.7
9.8
9.9
9.10
9.11

Account Expenditure Summaries
Education Fund

Operation & Maintenance Fund
Operation & Maintenance Fund (Restricted)
Bond & Interest Fund

Auxiliary Enterprise Fund

Restricted Purpose Fund

Working Cash Fund

Trust and Agency Fund

Audit Fund

Liability, Protection & Settlement Fund

(DOCUMENT G - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

FOR JULY 2025:

The warrant summaries are presented to the Board.

9.1
9.2
9.3
94
9.5
9.6

Account Expenditure Summaries

Education Fund

Operation & Maintenance Fund

Operation & Maintenance Fund (Restricted)
Bond & Interest Fund

Auxiliary Enterprise Fund

23

$9,733,125.18
1,487,453.73
354,592.15
-0-
1,581,860.95
3,533,426.40
-0-

9,306.11

-0-

9,125.75

$9,721,812.20
538,742.51
5,202.01

-0-
733,952.65



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 7

9.7  Restricted Purpose Fund 520,292.03
9.8  Working Cash Fund -0-
9.9  Trustand Agency Fund 0.69
9.10 Audit Fund -0-
9.11 Liability, Protection & Settlement Fund -0-

(DOCUMENT H - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

X. REPORT OF PERSONNEL

Chair McElroy Kirkwood publicly identified the nature of the agenda items
contained in the Report of Personnel.

10.1-1 Full-Time

Sara Cerda - Financial Aid Assistant - Effective: 7/28/25

Asmaa Herzallah - Admissions Support Assistant - Effective: 8/25/25
David Lis - Police Officer - Effective: 8/25/25

Teresa Mendoza - Secretary II - Effective: 6/16/25

Jeneen Samara - System Administrator - Effective: 7/28/25
(DOCUMENT I - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

10.1-2 Part-Time/Supplemental/Other

(DOCUMENT J - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

10.1-3 Salary Revisions

None.

10.1-4 Leave of Absence (LOA)

Maribel Krol - Grant Coordinator - L.O.A. (PARENTAL EXTENSION) —
5/13/25 -11/13/25

Christian Torres Smolenets - Instructor, Adult Education - L.O.A.
(PARENTAL) - 11/23/25 —12/7/25

(DOCUMENT K - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

10.1-5 Resignations/Terminations

Tiffany Davis - Early College Specialist - Effective: 8/8/25
Aaron Green - Community Service Officer - Effective: 7/16/25

24



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 8

Willis Jordan - Internal Auditor - Effective: 7/21/25

Christopher Mendoza - Student Success Specialist - Effective: 8/8/25
Teresa Mendoza - Secretary II - Effective: 6/16/25

Gregory Pateras - Coordinator, Code of Conduct - Effective: 7/16/25
Krysztof Ptak - P.T. User Support Services Specialist - Effective: 8/7/25
Nathan Gabriel Tabay - Applications Support Specialist - Effective: 7/16/25
Gabriela Vargas - Human Resources Assistant - Effective: 7/10/25
(DOCUMENT L - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

10.1-5(a) Retirements — Faculty

Patricia Brown - Professor, Nursing - Effective: 5/10/26

Tammi Carlson - Professor, Music - Effective: 8/1/26

Judith Corcoran - Professor, Nursing - Effective: 5/10/26

Joseph Flynn - Professor, Business - Effective: 7/31/26

Laurene Kirby - Professor, Mathematics - Effective: 7/31/26
Barbara Martin - Associate Professor, Nursing - Effective: 5/10/26
(DOCUMENT M - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

10.1-5(b) Retirements — Support Staff

Linda DeSouza - Departmental Assistant - Effective: 1/30/26
Nancy Syverson - Custodian - Effective: 9/30/25
(DOCUMENT N - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

10.1-6 Reclassifications (Promotions, Transfers, Corrections, etc.)

Renee Dampier - from Departmental Assistant to Testing Assistant —
Effective: 7/1/25

Nicholas Hackett - from Associate Professor, Biology to Professor —
Effective: Academic Year 2025-2026

Frank Johnson - from Assistant Professor, Mathematics to Associate
Professor - Effective: Academic Year 2025-2026

Steven Pappageorge - from Executive Director, Community Education,
Workforce Development to Vice President of Workforce, Strategy and
External Affairs - Effective: 8/25/25

Amy Piatkiewicz - from P.T. Departmental Assistant to F.T. Secretary 11 —
Effective: 7/28/25

Robert Schwien - from Assistant Professor, Engineering to Associate
Professor - Effective: Academic Year 2025-2026

Michelle Skelton - from Associate Professor, Criminal Justice to Professor —

25



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 9

XI.

XII.

Effective: Academic Year 2025-2026

Kimberly Tenorio - from Departmental Assistant to Program Assistant —
Effective: 7/21/255

(DOCUMENT O - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None.

NEW BUSINESS

Chair McElroy Kirkwood identified the nature of the agenda items contained
in New Business.

12.1 Affiliation Agreement with Aliyva Healthcare (Basic Nurse Assistant)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Aliya Healthcare (Basic Nurse Assistant).
(DOCUMENT P - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.2 Affiliation Agreement with Bright Light Medical Imaging (Radiology,
Mammography, Computed Tomography)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Bright Light Medical Imaging (Radiology, Mammography,
Computed Tomography).

(DOCUMENT Q - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.3 Affiliation Agreement with DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. (Radiologic
Technology, Phlebotomy. Sleep Technology)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. (Radiologic Technology,
Phlebotomy, Sleep Technology).

(DOCUMENT R - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.4 Affiliation Agreement with Loyola University Medical Center
(Respiratory Therapy)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Loyola University Medical Center (Respiratory Therapy).

26



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 10

(DOCUMENT S - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.5 Affiliation Agreement with OSF Healthcare System, Ottawa Regional
Hospital & Healthcare Center, Mendota Community Hospital, OSF Multi-
Specialty Group, Greater Peoria Specialty Hospital, LLC, Pointcore, Inc.
(Healthcare Programs)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with OSF Healthcare System, Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center, Mendota Community Hospital, OSF Multi-Specialty
Group, Greater Peoria Specialty Hospital, LL.C, Pointcore, Inc. (Healthcare
Programs).

(DOCUMENT T - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.6 Affiliation Agreement with Peace Village (Basic Nurse Assistant and

Nursing)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Peace Village (Basic Nurse Assistant and Nursing).

(DOCUMENT U - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.7 Affiliation Agreement with Polish American Addictions Counseling P.C.
(Addictions Studies)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Polish American Addictions Counseling P.C. (Addictions
Studies).

(DOCUMENT V - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.8 Affiliation Agreement with Rush University System for Health
(Healthcare Programs)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Rush University System for Health (Healthcare Programs).
(DOCUMENT W - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.9 Affiliation Agreement with Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers

(Nursing)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers (Nursing).

27



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 11

(DOCUMENT X - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.10 Affiliation Agreement with Southern New Hampshire University

(Nursing)

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the Affiliation
Agreement with Southern New Hampshire University (Nursing).
(DOCUMENT Y - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.11 2025-2026 Mailers Printing Bid

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees award this bid and authorize the
issuance of a purchase order in the amount of $116,067.00 to Precise Printing
Network, Inc., for the 2025-2026 Mailers Printing Bid.

(DOCUMENT Z - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.12 GE Gold Seal Senographe Pristina 3D Mammography System
Equipment Purchase

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve and authorize the
issuance of a purchase order in the amount of $177,762.25 to GE Healthcare
for the purchase of a GE Gold Seal Senographe Pristina 3D Mammography
System.

(DOCUMENT AA - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.13 MVCC Building T Electric Vehicle Chargers Bid

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees award this bid and authorize the
issuance of a purchase order in the amount of $75,500.00 to Courtesy Electric,
Inc. for the MVCC Building T Electric Vehicle Chargers Bid.

(DOCUMENT AB - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.14 MVCC Building T HVAC Replacement Phase I Bid

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees award this bid and authorize the
issuance of a purchase order in the amount of $745,852.00 to Quality
Mechanical Incorporated for the MVCC Building T HVAC Replacement
Phase I Bid.

(DOCUMENT AC - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.15 Approval of FY26 Budget

28



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 12

XTII.

It 1s recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the FY26 Budget as
presented.
(DOCUMENT AD - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

12.16 Revised Board Policy - 7261 - Work Week

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the revisions to Board
Policy — 7261 — Work Week as presented.
(DOCUMENT AE - SUPPLEMENT TO MINUTES)

ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN on Consent Agenda Items 9.1, 9.2,9.3,9.4, 9.5,
9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, and 9.11 (including travel reimbursements); 10.1-1,
10.1-2, 10.1-4, 10.1-5, 10.1-5(a), 10.1-5(b) and 10.1-6; and 12.1, 12.2, 12.3,
12.4,12.5,12.6,12.7, 12.8, 12.9, 12.10, 12.11, 12.12, 12.13, 12.14, 12.15 and
12.16:

Yes: McElroy Kirkwood, Fronczek, Murphy, O’Day, Shaar, Sullivan
Absent: Kerlin Walsh
Student

Advisory:  Yes
Motion carried.

MISCELLANEOUS

Chair McElroy Kirkwood provided information related to the upcoming
committee of the whole meeting scheduled for Wednesday, September 3, 2025,
from 5 to 7:30 p.m. She outlined two agenda items for the meeting. The first
agenda item is an updated Facilities Master Plan presentation to gather input
and direction from the Board on how the college should proceed. The second
agenda item pertains to Board policy review. Chair McElroy Kirkwood said
the Board will conduct a first reading of the policy on bylaw development,
Article 1, Article 2 and Article 4. She reiterated that the first reading for these
policy updates will occur during the committee of the whole meeting on
Wednesday, September 3, 2025, with formal vote on the policy updates during
the regular meeting on September 18, 2025.

Trustee O’Day noted that she sent a few questions regarding the upcoming
committee of the whole meeting and policy development. She said she has

29



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 13

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

requested a response in writing. Chair McElroy Kirkwood said Dr. Haney
would respond to the email.

Trustee Sullivan said she looks forward to wrapping up the policy discussion
and determining how the process will proceed. She said she believes that when
the policy on bylaw development is reviewed, it will help move forward with
a process in place. She said she appreciates all the hard work of the staff who
have helped with the review so far.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None.

CLOSED SESSION

It was moved by Trustee Sullivan and seconded by Trustee Shaar to motion to
adjourn to a closed session to discuss the appointment, employment,
compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of
the public body pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act
and for the discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under the Illinois
Open Meetings Act, for the purpose of semi-annual review of the minutes as
mandated by Section 2.06 and pursuant to Section 2(c)(21) of the Illinois Open
Meetings Act.

ROLL CALL VOTE taken on motion to move to a closed session:

Yes: McElroy Kirkwood, Fronczek, Murphy, O’Day; Shaar, Sullivan
Absent: Kerlin Walsh
Student

Advisory:  Yes
Motion carried.

Chair McElroy Kirkwood indicated that there would be no additional Board
business after the closed session.

The Board moved to closed session at 7:10 PM. The Board returned to open
session at 8:10 PM.

ADJOURNMENT

30



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 21. 2025 Page 14

The meeting adjourned at 8:11 p.m.

31



Agenda Item 6.0
October 16, 2025

REPORTS OF ADMINISTRATION

6.1 President’s Report Verbal

e Enrollment Report
e Facilities Master Plan Update

32



Agenda Item 7.0
October 16, 2025

COMMUNICATIONS

7.1 Palos Hills Beautification Award Enclosed

33



Agenda Item 7.1
October 16, 2025

COMMUNITY RESOURCE & RECREATION DEPARTMENT

The
(P( ity of
GOSN 5455w 1031d Street, Palos Hills, 11, 60465 (708) 430-4500 Fax (708) 430-8376 www.paloshillsweb.org

September 16, 2025

Palos Hills Resident Resident
Palos Hills, IL 60465

Dear Palos Hilis Resident,

Congratulations! Your home has been selected as a Business/Organization WINNER for the 2025
Beautification Contest by the City of Palos Hills.

Mayor Bennett and Alderman Marty Kleefisch, Beautification Chairman, along with the entire City
Council would like to present you with an award and certificate of appreciation for your efforts in

making your home a showcase.

The awards presentation will be held inside at the Palos Hills Community Center, 8455 W. 103" Street,
Palos Hills, on Saturday, October 25, at 11:30 a.m.

We hope you will be able to join us. Please RSVP with the correct spelling of your name to the
Community Resource and Recreation Department staff at (708) 430-4500 before October 10.

Sincerely,

T%Wh\k \)u,qu(b

Kristin Violante
CRRD Commissioner

34



FUND

MORAINE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 524
TREASURER'S REPORT

MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1

OCTOBER 16, 2025

EDUCATION FUND
OPERATION & MAINT FUND
OPERATION & MAINT (RESTR.)
BOND & INTEREST FUND
AUXILIARY FUND
RESTRICTED PURPOSE FUND
WORKING CASH FUND
TRUST & AGENCY FUND
AUDIT FUND
LIAB, PROTECT & SETTLE FUND
TOTAL

ENDING BALANCE REPRESENTED BY:

PETTY CASH & CHANGE FUNDS
HUNTINGTON BANK

OLD NATIONAL BANK

OLD NATIONAL BANK
WINTRUST MAXSAFE

BEGINNING ENDING

BALANCE RECEIVED DISBURSED BALANCE
$ 5992327348 $ 1240643340 $ 705022297 $ 65279,483.91
13,453,930.40 390,650.06 1,022,618.17 12,821,962.29
25,359,278.62 107,200.59 838,069.97 24,628,409.24
6,342,267.21 14,672.84 - 6,356,940.05
14,871,502.52 633,270.09 1,120,366.87 14,384,405.74
10,913,790.19 10,644,218.43 11,187,529.85 10,370,478.77
15,222,591.17 62,389.93 - 15,284,981.10
156,230.33 683.78 7,013.52 149,900.59
133,769.26 487.35 25,000.00 109,256.61
(276,771.97) 2,566.54 - (274,205.43)
$ 146,099,861.21 $ 24,262,573.01 _$ 21,250,821.35 _$ 149,111,612.87

IL METROPOLITAN INVESTMENT FUND
IL METROPOLITAN INVESTMENT FUND
IL SCHOOL DIST LIQUID ASSEST FUND

IL PUBLIC TREASURERS FUND
IL PORTFOLIO-IIT CLASS
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

CHECKING ACCT
CHECKING ACCT
TRUST ACCTS
MONEY MARKET
MONEY MARKET
CORE FUND
VARIOUS
VARIOUS
MONEY MARKET
VARIOUS
VARIOUS

35

$

22,250.00
1,050,171.28
1,758,375.55

274,623.61
18,723,862.97
5,706,117.97
2,440,163.50
12,388,443.84
9,933,792.06
4,006,532.44
53,699,398.24
39,107,881.41

$

149,111,612.87




MORAINE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 524
ACCOUNT EXPENDITURE SUMMARIES
MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.1
OCTOBER 16, 2025

AGENDA ITEM FUND AMOUNT
9.2 EDUCATION FUND $ 7,050,222.97
9.3 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE FUND 1,022,618.17
9.4 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE (RESTR) FUND 838,069.97
9.5 BOND & INTEREST FUND -
9.6 AUXILIARY ENTERPRISE FUND 1,120,366.87
9.7 RESTRICTED PURPOSE FUND 11,187,529.85
9.8 WORKING CASH FUND -
9.9 TRUST & AGENCY FUND 7,013.52
9.10 AUDIT FUND 25,000.00

9.11

LIABILITY, PROTECTION & SETTLEMENT FUND

TOTAL

36

$ 21,250,821.35




100 REPORTS OF PERSONNEL

10.1-1

10.1-2

10.1-3

10.1-4

10.1-5

10.1-5(2)

10.1-5(b)

10.1-6

Full Time

Part Time/Supplemental/Other

Salary Revisions

Leaves of Absence (LOA)

Resignations/Terminations

Retirements — Professional Staff

Retirements — Support Staff

Reclassifications
(Promotions, Transfers, Corrections, Etc.)

37

Agenda Item No. 10.0
October 16, 2025

Enclosed

Enclosed

None

Enclosed

Enclosed

Enclosed

Enclosed

Enclosed



SUBJECT REPORT-—Full Time

Samantha Gardner Departmental Assistant

Corporate, Community and Continuing Education

Eugene Muhammad  Curriculum Manager
Academic Services

Molly Pajor Departmental Assistant

Corporate, Community and Continuing Education

Linda Sanduski Secretary 11

Center for Teaching and Learning

Agenda Item No. 10.1-1
October 16, 2025

Effective: 9/22/25

Effective: 10/20/25

Effective: 10/6/25

Effective: 9/22/25

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That those above be employed at the indicated salary conditional upon receipt of a drug screening and

a background check from the State of Illinois.

38



Agenda Item No. 10.1-4
October 16, 2025

SUBJECT REPORT-Leave of Absence (LOA)

Diane Kovacevic Associate Professor, Nursing L.O.A. (MEDICAL)
Nursing 10/23/25-12/5/25

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the above leave be granted.

39



Agenda Item No. 10.1-5
October 16, 2025

SUBJECT REPORT - Resignations/Terminations

Charlotte Bumpers Accounts Payable Clerk Effective: 10/9/25
Finance and Accounting

Mollie Burkiewicz Visual Media Specialist Effective: 10/3/25
Marketing and Communications

Michael Dengler Groundskeeper Assistant Effective: 9/29/25
Campus Operations

Nathan Payovich Director of Disability Services Effective: 9/26/25
Center for Disability Services

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the above be approved as presented.

40



Agenda Item No. 10.1-5(a)
October 16, 2025

Retirement — Professional Staff

The following employee has submitted a notice of retirement per date listed:

Scott Leturno Academic Technology Professional and 12/22/25
LMS Administrator
Center for Teaching and Learning

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the request for retirement be approved as presented.

41



Agenda Item No. 10.1-5(b)
October 16, 2025

Retirement — Support Staff

The following employee has submitted a notice of retirement per date listed:

Susan Tuxford Secretary 11 12/22/25
Campus Operations

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the request for retirement be approved as presented.

42



Agenda Item No. 10.1-6
October 16, 2025

SUBJECT REPORT - Reclassifications (Promotions, Transfers, Etc.)

Name Present Position Action Taken

Dionna Bickham Human Resources Assistant Reclassified to:
Human Resources Administrative Assistant
Administrative Classified Vice President of Human Resources

Effective: 10/6/25

Lisa Mittler Assistant Professor, Accounting Pursuant to the terms of the
Science, Business, & Computer Technology Negotiated Agreement, promoted to
Associate Professor
Effective: Academic Year 2025-2026

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the above be approved as presented.

43



Agenda Item 12.0
October 16, 2025

NEW BUSINESS

*12.1 Affiliation Agreement with Chicago Ridge School District 127.5

(Nursing) Enclosed
*12.2 Affiliation Agreement with University of Chicago Medical Center

(Nursing) Enclosed
*12.3 Dean of Nursing Office Furniture Purchase Enclosed
*12.4 SWEC Juno Nursing Simulated Manikin Purchase Enclosed

*12.5 Request for Extension of 65th Street Tax Increment Finance District from
Village of Bedford Park Enclosed

*12.6 Request for Approval of Additional Funding for Capital Development

Board (CDB) Project: Building H Locker Rooms and Pool Area
Renovation Enclosed

44



Agenda Item 12.3
October 16, 2025

To: Dr. Pamela Haney, President

From: Dr. Ryen Nagle, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Date: October 1, 2025

Re: Dean of Nursing Office Furniture Purchase

Purchase Amount: $35.886.29

Type Of Purchase: (Ex. Technology, Facilities, Nursing) Furniture-Office

Sole/Single Source Purchase? [1Yes XINo

Legal Bid Required? [1Yes No  Ifno, please provide the reasoning:
The college is receiving pricing for this request through the authorized and preferred furniture
dealer Forward Space, LLC., of Wood Dale, Illinois via the OMNIA Partners/Public Sector

agreements.

Funding Source (Grant, College, Other): Campus Operations-Project Construction

Background: With the college’s expansion of the Nursing program, the Dean of Nursing position
was created in early 2025. New office space, B106, was allocated for this position and
administrative support. The college is requesting the purchase of office furniture for this office
suite.

Analysis: The pricing for this purchase is via OMNIA Partners’ cooperative purchasing
organization. OMNIA Partners/Public Sector is a cooperative purchasing organization that
creates cooperative and joint purchasing contract opportunities for government, educational, and
non-profit agencies nationwide. When applicable, the college encourages diverse supplier
participation. Preferred dealer, Forward Space, LLC, is a State of Illinois Business Enterprise
Program (BEP) certified Women Business Enterprise (WBE).

Recommended Action: Whereas Forward Space, LLC of Wood Dale, Illinois, has been approved
by OMNIA Partners as an authorized preferred dealer, it is recommended that the Board of
Trustees approve this purchase and authorize the issuance of a purchase order in the amount of
$35,886.29 to Forward Space, LL.C for the Dean of Nursing Office Furniture Purchase.

45



Agenda Item 124
October 16, 2025

To: Dr. Pamela Haney, President

From: Dr. Ryen Nagle, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Date: October 1, 2025

Re: SWEC Juno Nursing Simulated Manikin Purchase

Purchase Amount: $264.054.97

Type Of Purchase: (Ex. Technology, Facilities, Nursing) Nursing

Sole/Single Source Purchase? X Yes [INo Ifyes, please provide reasoning:
Elevate Healthcare is the sole manufacturer and sole provider of installation, training, and
warranty for the Juno Simulated Manikins with proprietary software.

Legal Bid Required? [Yes No If no, please provide the reasoning:
Elevate Healthcare is the sole manufacturer and sole provider of installation, training, and
warranty for the Juno Simulated Manikins with proprietary software.

Funding Source (Grant, College, Other): College Operations and Maintenance Restricted
Fund

Background: With the college’s expansion of the Nursing program at the Southwest Education
Center (SWEC), the college is requesting the purchase of eight (8) Juno Simulated Manikins and
associated equipment and software for instructional use.

Analysis: The purchase of these Juno Simulated Manikins is consistent with the manikin
equipment utilized at both the college’s main campus and Blue Island Education Center (BIEC)
for student learning in lab and simulation. In accordance with our accrediting agency, purchasing
this equipment would allow the college to remain in alignment with providing students with the
same resources across all campuses. With the use of the manikins, students will learn key
fundamental skills to care for patients as novice nurses. Upon approval of the purchase, these
manikins would be delivered in Spring 2026 to allow for faculty and staff training and set up for
the Fall 2026 opening of Nursing at SWEC.

Recommended Action: Whereas Elevate Healthcare, of Sarasota, Florida, is the sole
manufacturer and sole provider for the Juno Simulated Manikin, it is recommended that the Board
of Trustees approve and authorize the issuance of a purchase order in the amount of $264,054.97
to Elevate Healthcare for the SWEC Juno Nursing Simulated Manikin Purchase.

46



Agenda Item 12.5
October 16, 2025

REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF 65TH STREET TAX INCREMENT FINANCE
DISTRICT FROM VILLAGE OF BEDFORD PARK

Recommended Action:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees authorize the college to send the attached
letter stating the college understands the proposal from the village of Bedford Park to
extend the term of the 65" Street Tax Increment Financing TIF District.

47



LAWRENCE R. GRYCZEWSKI

Attorney at Law
19832 S. Scarth Lane
Mokena, Illinois 60448
(708) 403-5600
Lrelaw03@sbcglobal.net

Via e-mail: president@morainevalley.edu

September 18, 2005

Moraine Valley Community College
President Pamela J. Haney, Ph.D.
9000 W. College Parkway

Palos Hills, IL 60465

Re:  Redevelopment Project Area
65" Street TIF District, Village of Bedford Park

Dear President Haney,

Please let me introduce myself. I am the Village attorney for Bedford Park, Illinois. The Village is
seeking your approval in its attempt to secure legislation extending the 65 Street Tax Increment
Finance District (65" Street TIF). For background information, the Village approved the 65" Street
TIF in 2011. Despite the effort to lure development along 65 Street, the Village was unable to do so
for a variety of factors. A couple of issues that were detrimental to the Village’s efforts included
uncertain economic times and the COVID pandemic. During the past two years, development has
begun to occur along 65" Street. Construction has started on the following projects.

- A new Wendy’s restaurant;

- A Wyndham hotel is partially completed; and

- Phase II of the Wintrust Sports Complex consisting of a 125,000 sq. ft. facility should be
completed by May of 2026.

Two new commercial developments have opened in 2025 those being a Gas N Wash Fuel Center and
a Moretti’s Italian restaurant. All of these operations will save the public throughout this area.

Mayor Brady and the Board of Trustees are committed to developing all of 65" Street revitalizing this
area which will benefit the Village and the taxing districts. However, each developer we have
approached is concerned that the present TIF will expire in roughly nine years. Therefore, the Village
discussed our option with our Village Planner and it has been determined that a TIF extension would
be very beneficial when we are in negotiations with potential developers. Mayor Brady and his staff
did talk with State Representative Angelica Guerrero-Cuellar and State Senator Mike Porfirio relative
to this matter. Both officials seemed receptive of our request but your support is important to our

48


mailto:Lrglaw03@sbcglobal.net

efforts.

In conclusion, future developments will be stalled unless developers have the ability to use tax
increment financing. Accordingly, the Village is respectively asking for your support in securing the
TIF extension for the 65" Street corridor. If you are in agreement, please sign below indicating your
approval and email the same back to my office.

Upon behalf of Mayor Brady and the Board of Trustees, thank you for your support. If you have any
questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Thank you for your time and attention.

Very truly yours,

Lawnence B. Grycsemolsc

Lawrence R. Gryczewski
Village Attorney, Bedford Park

Support to Extend 65 Street TIF Extension

Moraine Valley Community College Date:

49



Agenda Item 12.6
October 16, 2025

REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR CAPITAL
DEVELOPMENT BOARD (CDB) PROJECT: BUILDING H LOCKER ROOMS
AND POOL AREA RENOVATION

The initial estimated total project cost was $595,057, with $446,293 appropriated through
the Capital Development Board. However, during the Program Analysis and Design
Development Submittal phase, updated cost estimates came in higher than anticipated.
Several unforeseen conditions were discovered in the renovation areas, requiring an
expansion of the original project scope. As a result, we are requesting the Board’s
approval of up to $230,000 in additional funding, if necessary, to complete the project as
intended.

Recommended Action:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve up to $230,000 in additional
funding, if necessary, to complete the project as intended.

50





